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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN] PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Willow Grove dwelling house is scenically set in a spacious estate amidst the

rolling farmlands of the middle Piedmont. Termed by the noted architectural historian Fiske
Kimball as "a unigue example of the picturesqueness of growth", the present two-and-one-
half-story structure is the result of two extensive building periods. The wood frame
(southern) section dates from the 1790-1810 era, while the brick {northern) section dates
from 1848, The two sections comprise a six~bay, 63' x 30' asymmetrically planned house.

Set on a high basement, the front (east) elevation consists of six bays. The three
bays to the north are constructed of brick laid in Flemish bond, while the three bays to
the south are wood frame, covered by weatherboarding. The two sections are given visual
cohesion by a massive, two-and~one-half-story, tetrastyle pedimented portico. The portico
contains Tuscan columns, a full Tuscan entablature, and a lunette in the tympanum, as well
as its original arched brick podium. Chinese lattice railings decorate the first floor of

‘the portico and the gallery. The latter is suspended on iron rods.. The portico shelters.

first- and second-story, transom-and-sidelight doorways which retain their original
paneled double doors. Fenestration throughout the house consists of &/6 bhung-sash windows
containing wooden lintels with corner blocks and louvered blinds. A Tuscan cornice embel~
lishes the slate-covered hip roof on the east and west elevations.

The rear (west) elevation contains a two-bay recessed portico cut out of the north-
west corner. A one-story porch shelters the remaining four bays of the west elevation.
Fenestration is similar to that found on the east elevation and also contains three dormer
windows with 6/6 hung sash.

The north elevation consists of two bays, and the treatment of the fenestration is
similar to that found on the east elevation. The fenestration of the south elevation
comprises three bays, similar in execution to the east elevation. A side entry is framed
by simple wooden architrave trim. Both the north and south elevations contain tall
interior end chimneys. '

willow Grove's asymmetrical plan is dominated by a large entry hall which is flanked
by a front parlor and rear porch to the north and a lateral stair hall and large back
parlor to the south. The stair has paneled spandrels, scrolled brackets, and rectangular
balusters, two to a tread; A finely turned newel supports a rounded handrail. The doox
and window frames in the stair hall and throughout the house contain simple wood trim.
The most notable features of the interior are the mantels. The mantels in the south
portion of the house are Federal in inspiration. Of particular interest is the reeded
mantel in the southwest parlor, which is complemented by a simple wooden wainscot. The
mantels in the 1848 north section are Greek Revival.

The Willow Grove estate contains a fine collection of outbuildings. A two-story
schoolhouse, a one-story weaving house, and a smokehouse constitute the surviving
antebellum dependencies. Numerous 19th-century farm buildings are located to the south-
west of the main house. The buildings include a frame and stone barn and stable. A
later frame stable is located to the east of the residence.

The grounds at Willow Grove include many varieties of shade trees, large maqgnolia
trees, several types of holly and boxwood, and flowering shrubs dating from the .19th
century. A rear flower garden features spring bulbs, lilies, and peonies. Several
‘mourds"™ in the front yard remain from the Victorian period, having at one time hoasted

flowers of complementing varieties to those found in the rear.
RCC (See Continuation Sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Willow Grove is a scenic historic estate set amidst the rolling farmlands of Orange
County. The propexty is dominated by an imposing house, the earliest portion of which
began as a modest frame dwelling built by 1800 for Joseph Clark. The house was substantially
enlarged in 1848 by the addition of a brick wing and a monumental Tuscan portico by Clark's
son, William D. Clark. The resulting structure stands as an impressive example of the
influence of Thomas Jefferson's Classical Revival style on the homes and public buildings
of Virginia's Middle Piedmont section and an indication of the prosperity of this portion
of the state in the mid-19th century.

The land on which Willow Grove was built was acquired by Joseph Clark in 1787 and
consisted of 248 acres. In the same year that Clark acquired the Orange County property,
he petiticned to build a mill on "Glebe Run" and presumably settled on his Orange County
estate at about this time. In 1828 Clark sold the Willow Grove property to his son,
William, retaining possession of the land during his lifetime. In 1831 William D. Clark

 is charged in the Orange County tax books with 248 acres of land and "improvements" valued

at $1125, fThe "improvements" refer to the wood-frame house of his father, who died in 1839.
No substantial additions were made to the property until 1848, when a tax book notation
indicates that $1711 worth of new buildings was added in that year, referring to the
northern brick section of Willow Grove. The total value of the improvements was then listead
as $2992,

Although the two-story, brick addition contrasted with the original portion, Clark was
able to give the enlarged structure a sense of unity and monumentality through the use of a
two-and-one~half-story tetrastyle Tuscan portico. In terms of its facade, the remodeled
house is not stylistically unlike earlier examples of the Jeffersonian—inspired residence;
however, in terms of the interior, Clark chose to maintain the simplicity of his father's
earlier Federal house.

It is to the credit of the Lyne and Shackelford families, who have owned the estate
since 1890, that the grounds surrounding Willow Grove maintain a strong 19th-century flavor,
the undulating lawns are dotted with large old trees, boxwoods, and various early outbuild-
ings.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION Beginning at a point approximately 2800' SE of the Rapidan
River, on SW side of U. S. Route 15; thence extending about 600' SE along said side of sald
route to intersection with 400' contour line; thence following said contour SW, NE, SW, W,

then SW for about 1B00'; thence extending approximately 650' NW to 500' contour and following
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said contour NE for about 600'; thence extending approximately 700' NE to U.S. Route 15, point
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18th and 19th centuries.The boundary does encompass the gardens, outbuildings and tree
and shrub plantings that enhance the estate. Willow Grove is bounded on the north by

U. S. Route 15, on the east by a 400' contour line, on the south by a line that is drawn
to include the farm buildings but not to include adjacent ridges, and on the west by a
“straight 1line that runs from the contour to U.S..15.

DESCRIPTION

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The nominated property constitutes a fraction of the original Clark holdings during
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